CROPWELL DISTRICT

The town of Cropwell is located in the nerth central part
of Alabama near the Coosa River in St. Clair County. This old
community consists of a Variety of architectural structures and
includes 19 buildings, a proposed park, and a cemetery. The
Cropwell community was settled about 1820, when early settlers
were able to buy&zxg;ﬁ}arm land for $1.00 an acre. Town records
indicate Cropwell's active Participation in the Civil War in
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egiment of Alabama Infantry. The Company
marched from Cropwell and eventually arrived at Bull Run. Records
Qéggﬁifactivities from June, 1861,t040ctober, 186y,

The Cropwell district makes UP a part of Pell City; the
closest site to Pell City is the Valley Hill Cemetery, which was
donated by Jones Fall Roberson, Addie Roberson, and Pat Roberson,
in 1924, Covering two acres of land, this lovely cemetery with
its trees, boxwood shrubs, holly bushes, and pine‘trees, houses
the bodies of many community leaders.

The site for the future city park is centrally lézated The

project for the park was organlzed by Miss Mary Mays and flnaﬁClally

f~Cemm@Fce This lovely park

supported by thﬁ-f@%ﬁw@®tﬂ~vuambex

will be dedicated to +the original Cropwell community, and will contaln

a natlve boulderswhich lists historical facts about the community

such as the nearby-crossing of the Coosa River by Andrew Jackson.
Across from the site of the park is the Mays home, a two-

story white Vlctorlan home constructed about 1906. The bullder,

James Campbell Mays, was a descendant of the first settlers in

Coosa Valley, the Bryants and the Buchanans. The house remained



in the Mays family until 1966, when 1t was sold to ﬁi%eiﬂéféeycé.
The Mays house has nine rooms and two baths; every room contains
a fireplace. A front view of the house offers a double full-
length porch, ornate Victorian spindles.around the upper porch,
four square pillars, a wrought-iron balustrade and two front doors,
one on each-level, The upper door is flanked with shutters, the
iower door has six panels, sidelight, and é broken pediment. The
roof is four-gabled with scale-shaped shingles and a hexagonal
turret on the right corner. The originel veranda has been removed.
Before the organization of the Cropwell Baptist Church in
1889, the citizens of Cropwell worshipped at Mt. Pisgah (1828)
or at Coosa Valley (1840); they held. their Sabbath school in the
Masonic Lodge. A storm leveled the building in 1927, but it was
immediately rebuilt in the original form, which is gabled 1in a
simple Colonial style. The oné-story building has a brick foundation
and three square pillars at each corner of the portico. An.
octagonal bell tower with louvres graces the top of the roof;
it is surrounded by a square balcony and balustrade. In 1961, a
new wing was added on the left side for Sunday School. The top
level of the wing has a narrow porch which runs the length of the
~ structure.
‘The post office, which sits on the same side of the»road as
the church, was constructed in 1929 from focks collected locally
by Dr. James P. Turner, postmaster. In its history the building
has served as both post office and drug store. The structure has
two entrances and a tin shed roof supported by square poOsSTs across

the front.
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The old Jones-Roberson Store next door 1s NOW known as the
Tims Shop. The store was built in 1897. Cropwell's first merchant,

John W. Jones, used the store, which eventually was passed on to .
A 2 8Fm e

hig”;g@;{n—law, James R. Roberson. Presently, the one:s%orwafame-
building is used by David Tims and his wife as an antique store.

A two-story Victorian commercial brick bui;ding with English garden
wall brick design, the structure retains its'antique quality with

0ld wagons and wagon wheels in the grass behind the cross board
fence. A typical Victorian architeétural structure, the building

has archéd windows with header brick lintels and wooden frames.

The Egggéwggggénornament on the windows ana the inverted bay entrance

T de

e the building worthy of attentioﬁ. A shed roof with black

asbestos shingles shades the bottom windows and double door. The
interior is Victorian as well, with floor, céiling, cabinets, stairs,
and balustrade of stained pine. On the first floor is an office
with wrought iron grill. A balcony surrounds the room with a
balustrade of beautifully—tupned spindles.

The site of the blacksmith shop and cotton gin lies across
the street from the post office. The blqcksmith shop existed until
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the 1920's on the spot where David Tims'ashop now stands. The
cotton gin, which operated until the 1950's, was a vital industry
to Cropwell. It was constructed in 1888,.and was used actively
until cattle raising and tree farms became more important money
sources.

The two Roberson homes sit across from the gin site on County

Road 34. John Roberson came to St. Clair County prior to 1820,

becoming one of the oldest families in Cropville _His grandson, :

James Russell Rcberson, acquired the land and b 1t the James R.
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Roberson home as_well'*as the store across the street. The home

is a rambling two-story Victorian structure of symmetrical federal

style. The Victorian element is the double portico with gabled
ailel
pediment and triangular and scale sing%es, The Addie Roberson

home next door is a large rambling‘buﬂéaiﬁw. The distinctive

~ veranda surrounds three sides of the front portion of the house
and is supported by square pillars. Both homes are presently a
part of the Nancy Roberéon estate.

The Jones-Morton House is one- of the>older homes in Cropwell;
it was constructed by Mr. Hardy Jones and is owned and rented out
presently by Mr. J. T. Morton. The house is a two-story white
frame square structure with hip roof and a large gable. Originally,
a one-story porch extended the full length of the house, but it
has since béen replaced by a small porch close to the entrance.

The Cropwell district offers much of historical value to
St. Clair County and Alabama with its structures and Civil War

sites. The Alabama State Gazetteer of 1884 1lists businessmen and

farmers of Cropwell:

Alverson, C. D. & Co., genl mdse

Chandler, E. P., physician

Cropwell Academy

Dillon, 7., lawyer

Drake, J. C., mill

Hardwick, J. 0., steam saw and grist mill
Heaslet, B. C., genl mdse

Jacobs, H., blacksmith

Laney., J. W., justice of the peace and cotton gin
Lawler, A. J., cotton gin

McRae, D. A., genl mdse

Moncue, J. W., shoemaker

Robinson, Jr. B., physician

Robinson & Jones, genl mdse, cotton buyers, grain and fertilizers

—r



Farmers -- P. Turner, T. McCay, J. F. Rowland, S. D. Kilgro,
E. R. Buchanan, William Ramsey, H. H. Alexander, William
Brodor, T. Font, C. T. Ewing, R..0. Hardwick, T. L. Graham,

v Rov]

C.
T.
T.
W.
K.

Heaslet, A. J. Lawler, E. P. Chandler, W. A. Murchison,
Murchison, A. J. Donohoo, J. Hardwick, J. G. Black,
Watson, J. F. Robeson, W. C. Truss, H. F. Williamson,
Lowry, T. W. Moncrief, M. Leachmore, T. S. Willingham,
Robinson, M. B. McRae, N. Willingham.

The district has been nominated for the National Register of
“Historic Places.



Cropwell Historic District

1. David & Betty Tims House
#2, NMays-Harvey House
3, Allie Fant House
#4, Cropwell Baptist Church
5, Cropwell Ba_tist Chuxch Parsonage

6. David Condes House

7. Billy Bynum House
¥g, Cropwell Post Oirfice
*9 ., Jones-Roberson-Tims Store
*10 James R. Roperson House
#11 Ada nobe*SQn Hou

. sSite of COLbon Gin
. Mrs. Kage Fants House

s. T. S. Amters' House
rton House
*¥%18., Sitelof Future Park
19. Gloria V. Roherson House
20. ‘''Country Stoxe"
*¥%¥21, Valley Hill Cemetexy

* significant structures mentioned in the report
3 significant sites me entioned in the reporxrt
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Mrs. vaxan Qualls of Steele proudly displaysa
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GENERAL SERVI ISTRATION

Federal Records Center
111 W. Winnebago Sireet
St. Louis 78, Missouri 63118

August 275 1965

IN REPLY REFER TO:
Mrs. Laura K. Gray
pell City Libraxry
1905 1st Avenve North

pell City, Alabama.
Dear Mrs. Gray:

The following information is furnished in response to your letier dated
August 23, 1965.

Rural Route #1. was established at cropwell, St. clair County, Alabama

on Februaly 1, 1908. The Rural Carrier and his daes of service was:
John M. Alexande¥ Tebrvary 1, 1908 to ¥

*Records ShoW no other Rural Carrier assigned O Route #1 other than
Mr. Alexander. Apparently this route is still active. Roster cards
por active route which will shovw the date that the Rural Carriers geyvices

were terminated, and ‘the names and dates of service of subsequent Rural

-

Carriers are in the custody of the Director of Personnel,Reglonal office,
post Office Department, Merphi1s Tennessee .

Rural Route #2 was estaplished at Cropwell, gt. Clair County, Alabama, on
June 1, 1908, and giscontinued on June 15, 1919-

Tpe Rural CarrieX of Route f2 during that period was:

John B. Rowland June 1, 1908 to June 15, 1919.
Rural Route 42 was re sgtaplished at Cropwell, g, Clair County, Alaband,
on July 1, 1919, The Rural Carriers of The re—established Route 2, and.
their dates of service were as follows:

John B. Rowland July 1, 1919 to December 31, 1919

Robert S. Jones January 2, 1920 o February 29, 1920

No service OB Route 42 on January Lo 1920.

Charles W. Scott March 1, 1920 to July 3%, 1920

No service on Route 2 on August 1, 1920.



Robert S. Jones August 2, 1920 to October 16, 1920
No service on Route #2 on August 17, 1920.

James Castleberry October 18, 1920 to December 31, 1932
Rural Route #2 was discontinued on December 31, 1932.

Any additional information subsequent to that which we have furnished
May be obtained Trom the Director of Personnel, Regional Office,
Post Office Department, Memphis, Tennessee.

Sincerely yours,
P g
A //‘%,7&4/
/M. D. DAVIS

Chief
Reference Service Branch



THE HISTORY OF CROPWELL

In the year 1815 a group of relatives in South Carolina banded to-
gether and started out for St. Clair County, Alabama to settle and make
new homes there. They were the John Roberson, Williamson, Truss, Cole-
man, and Jeremiah Collins families. All of them except the Collins family
had a covered wagon in which to travel., Mr. Collins could not afford a
wagon so he made a crude "slide" on which to transport a few belongings
and his family rode in the wagons with the relatives. The Colliné family
was from Virginia but had come on down to South Carolina to join in the
trek to Alabama. This group of kinspeople settled in the vicinity of what
is now Cropwell and they were the first white people to settle there. Soon
other white settlers came. Some of these early families were as follows:
Buéhanon, Jones, Fennel, Castleberry, Bowden, Allen, Brewster, Alexander,
Turner, Lane, Roland, Heaslett, Coley, Mencrief, and Murchison.

These First settlers bought some of the finest farm and timber land
in the valley for #1.00 per acre. Most of them prospered. Even Mr,
Collins who had slid in on a homemade slide found a way to gebt possession
of hundreds of acres of fine land and more slaves than he could call by
name.

On July 2, 1833, a postoffice was established as Coosa at Cropwell.
Tt was located about a mile from Truss! Ferry. On November 15, 183k, the
name was changed to Diana. The name was changed from Diana to Cropwell
on October 20, 1837. The Cropwell postoffice was discontinued on July 25,
1866 but was reestablished on June 10, 1867. The names of the postmasters

and the dates of their appointments are as follows:



James Roberson

P. H. Castdeberry
John D, TFennel
Russel I. Allen
John Collins

John W, Jones
Amasa L. Bowden
T. I. Fowler
Mattison Hendricks
James R. Roberson
W, L. Dollar
William G. Sides
Hardie Jones
James P, Turner
Albert R. Jones
Jobn B, Shurbet

Amanda Tunderburg

Hovember 2L, 1833
February 19, 1835
October 20, 1837
lovember 6, 1840
September 29, 1843
January 7, 185L
April 10, 1860
June 10, 1867
August 5, 1867
January23, 1873
Janvary 20, 1898
February 1L, 1899
October 25, 1901
March 30, 1907
August 15, 191l
October 20, 1915

December 13, 1928

Another little postoffice on what is now Cropwell Route was established

in 1901 and discontinued in 1908,

It was Fountainrun and was located in

the Harmon settlement two miles west of the Coosa River. Mr., J. 0. M.

Hardwick was the only postmaster to serve that little postoffice,

Host of the early people of Cropwell were Baptist. They attended the

Mt. Piszah Baptist Church which was esteblished in 1828, the Coosa Valley

Baptist Church which was established in 18L0, and the Sedden Baptist Church

which was organized before the Civil War. The few Methodists, including the

McRaes and Laneys, belonzed to the Fasonville Methodist Church. Before any

of the churches were organized camp meetings were held at Basonville and on



Camp Creek. Later in 1888 the Cropwell Baptist Church was organizede:
Long before the Cropwell Baptist Church was organized and built the
community had its own Sunday School which was held in the Masonic Building.

The very early settlers of Cropwell provided a school of some kind
for their children. At first the schools were taught in dwellings. The
parents paid‘the teacher's salary and provided fire wood for fuel. After
the Coosa Valley Church was built it served as a schoolhouse, also. Mr,
Owen Hardwick was one of the early teachers to teach in that church. He
taught in the late 18L0t's. 4 Mr, Brickhouse was teaching in the Coosa
Valley Church during the Civil War when the Wilson Raiders came galloping
up the valley road. One of the Yankees who rode ahead of the main band of
raiders pulled on his reins and stopped long enough to warn Mr. Brickhouse
and to have him to dismiss school and hurry the children off homes

After the Civel War the Cropwell children walked to Easonville and
attended a school which had been built there. Around 1880 a new school,
called Coosa Valley High School, was bullt where Preston Wadsworth®s home
now stands. It served both the Zasonville and the Cropwell commumnities
until 1888. It was to this Coosa Valley High School that Mr, T. W. Hill
came as principal. During the 1887-1888 term a movement was made to have
the school moved to Cropwell. IMr. Jim Roberson offered to give the level
plot of land below what is now lMr, Fall Roberson's home (toward Fasonville)
on which to locate the new school. Mr. Hill was highly in favor of the new
location and when he left for vacation he thought that plans were definite
to build there but Easonville decided to build her own school in the center
of the community for two reasons: PFirst: OShe didn't want to lease the
school to Cropwell, and, second: A school located in the center of the

commmnity would enable the children living in the lower part of the



cormunity to attend a betbter school. When the Coosa Valley School had been
built, the parents of lowere Easonville had moved the little "first school~
house" down there so that their children would have a school nearer to
them. That little school was called Harmon school and it enabled little
children to attend more regularly than if they'd have had to walk all the
way to Coosa Valley High School. The teachers who taught in the Harmon
school were Mr. Jim Hardwick, Miss Mattie Abbott and Mr. Thomas Harliss.
They were conscientious teachers but they were not as good as Mr. Hill and
the people in that part of the community were anxious for lir, Hill*s school
to be located nearer instead of farther away from them. So, in 1888 the
new school was built at Easonville. The following year, 1889, Cropwell
built 2 new school. It was a two-story building located about a quarter
of a mile from the present school. It was to this school that Hr. Roy
Gibson came as principal in 1915. In 1918 the present school was built
at Cropwell. Er. Gibson remained there until 1926, He had a well
disciplined and orderly high school and was the most beloved principal
that Cropwell ever had. The school remained a high school until 1929,
In the early years of the school's history the people of the community
supported their school well. Back when the state could pay for only a
short term of school the patrons of that school contributed noney for
teachers' salaries in order to have longer terms of school. Cropwell
was also the first commmity in the county to vote for the three mill tax
for the support of schools.

Cropwell has always been an agriculbtural community., Cotton has
always been the principal crop. The Colemans, as early as the Civil
War years, owned a steam gin. Part of Cropwell's cotton was ginned
there., Part of it was ginned at Drake's Mill at Fasonville and part of
it was ginned at the old Laney horse-drawn gin. Robersons began to

operate a steam gin at Cropwell in 1888,



In 18LO John W. Johes, who came from Peterburg, Virginia, began to
operate a business at Cropwell. That store will exist under the name,
James Roberson Sons. Another successful business of Cropwell was a store
operated before the Civil War by William T. Smith. It fell into decline
after he left to fight in the Confederate Army where he became a colonel.
In 1927 a drugstore was built at Cropwell and was operated by Dr. James P.
Turner,

During the Civil War some of the Cropwell men served with distinction
in the Confederate Army, In 1861 Company C of 10th Alabama Infantry Regiment
wes organized at Cropwell with Major J, D. Truss as it's captain., William
Te Smith, a member of the outfit won many promotions and rose to the rank
of colonel of the 10th Alabama Infantry Regiment. This regiment was en-
gaged in about twenty-four battles during the Civil -War. They included
Second Manassa, Sharpsburg, Fredricksburg, Wilderness, Chanselersville,
Gettysburg, Spotsylvania Courthouse, Salem Church, and Crater. The regi-
ment was distinguished for its action at Crater and Salem Church.

The first United Daughters of the Confederacy chapter in St. Clair
County was organized at Cropwell on July 20, 191k, It was called the
Jomn W, Jones Chapter,

The first Masonic Lodge in St, Clair County was organized at Cropwell
before the Civil War,

In 1886 the B%A (Birmingham and Atlantic Railroad) was built by
Rogers Brothers Lumbering Company and it ran through Cropwell. It was
built primarily to transport lumber but it had a passenger car and it
carried mail, There was a depot at Cropwell, Mr. Ben Heaslett was the

depot agent,

Vera Wadsworth
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part of Pell City also. This includes the old West residence, land where
.- the Fishing Creek 'Methodist Church stood, the old cemetery, and the
;' home of Dr. John Roberson. Seddon was settled in 1880 when the
. Georgia Pacific Railroad was built. 1t was incorporated that year with a
t population of five hundred. The people came there to live from Truss’s
. Ferry (Ferryville), one mile away on the Coosa River. It was a lumber
: community for Empire Lumber Company. The town was named for
Thomas Seddon, who was the first Secretary of War for the Confederate
States under Jefferson Davis. The first merchant was J. K. P. Lacy. Dr.
Henry Green Crump was the first doctor. Other pioneer settlers were
Jake Maddox, W. H. and W.N. Roberson, and Harvey Bell. When the
timber supply was exhausted the mills moved away. Today part of the
tiny village stands dismally amid dreams of the past.

‘)K The town of Cropwell now is also part of Pell City. Soon after the
" Battle of Horseshoe Bend, a group of friends and relatives from the
/ Laurens and Abbeville districts of South Carolina came seeking a new

home in the wilderness. They were the John Roberson, Williamson,

Truss, Coleman, and Collins familjes. They homesteaded near the Coosa

River on land where today Cropwell and Pine Harbor stand. Soon other

families joined them: Buchanans, Bryants, Joneses, Fennels, Kilgroes,

Castleberrys,, Bowdens, Allens, Brewsters, Alexanders, Walkers, Tumers,

Laneys, Rolands, Heasletts, Coleys, Mays, Moncriéfs, and Murchinsons.

These people secured the finest farm and timber land in the valley for a

dollar an acre and prospered on it. Jeremiah Collins, who could not

afford a wagon and had brought all his worldly goods on a crude “slide,”
soon owned hundreds of acres of fine land, a good home, and more
slaves than he could call by name. These pioneers cleared land,
established roads and mail routes, and built churches and schools. They

Ooperated stores, grist mills, distilleries, and tanneries. Their

entertainment consisted of fox hunting and horse racing.

In 1833 a post office was established about a mile from Truss’s

Ferry. 1t was first called Coosa, but was changed to Diana, and, in 18317,
“_to Cropwell. James Roberson was the first postmaster. There was

“another early post office nearby in the Harmon settlement which was

called Fountainrun. J. O. N. Hardwick served as postmaster there.

91



M. uchAof Southeast’s Sod Oﬁgi

When one thinks of getting the
[awn in shape for summer, every
homeowner dreams of a lush green
yard bordered by beautiful colorful
flowers and varied shrubs and flow-
ering trees. One of the ways that
homeowners can get that lush green
lawn is by laying sod on carefully
prepared ground. Sod provides an
instantly beautiful lawn. .

In Alabama and in much of the
Southeastern United State, a large
portion of the sod put down each
day originates right in St. Clair
County, on a farm just of 231 South
in Pell Cioty. Owner of the Surfside
Sod Farm Dick Wilis a grass farmer
who provides this turf for lawns. At
the sod farm, sodis sold both whole-
sale and retail, and.it can be picked
by the buyer at the farm or delivered
inone of Wall’s trucks which is
equipped with a boom unloader.

Business at Surfside is good for
tworeasons. Sod salesarerelated to
the amount of construction going

Aree grass.

on at a given time, and right now
construction business is good. Sec-
ond, Wall works hard to produce
and sell healthy, disease and insect

Soil testing, fertilizing, and insect
and disease control are important
aspects of Wall’s operation. He
works with Pell City Gold Kist
manager Bill Jones on bulk blend
fertilizer and other production
needs:

Grass farming is a science. When a
sod harvester cuts, it is automati-
cally guided over the grass, digging
and cutting tyhe turf into pieces 16 x
24 inches. It is like a big tractor with
a huge spatula and three pizza cut-
ters; The harvester’s conveyor
moves the cut sod pieces to the back
of the machine where a worker
stacks thém on pallets that measure
48 x 48 inches. o

When the sod comes up, there are
two inch rows of grass left on the
fields. A huge Rototiller tuns the
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nates In Pell City

grass that is left back under to cre-
ate new plants. The land is then

rolled and smoothed and watered,

made ready for the new sod that it

Sod that is deliveréd on a particu-
lar day has never been cut for more
" than 24 hours. it is a living product,
and fast handling insures preserv-
ing the quality. About 60-percent of
the farms sod sold is for residential
use, 30 percent for commercial use,
and the other 10 percent goes to
football fields and golf courses.
The sod farm is actually five sepa-
rate farms growing three kinds of
grass: Centipede, Tifton Bermuda,
and Emerald Zoysia. There are 850
acres sown in sode. The Zoysia is
the most difficult to grow and is the
most expensive grass grown at
Surfside. Both Zoysia and Centi-
pede take two years of growth be-
fore they are ready for harvest.
Wall’s says volume business i$ in
Bermuda grass because it take only
twelve months to produce, and it

irrigation guns and 63 peices of
equipment. Being a grass farmer is
toughest when the summer is hot
and dry as it was last year. During
that time they average putting out
an inch of watera week on all of the
850 acres of sod, and that requires
Almost constant moving of irriga-
tion guns. In addition to watering,
there is-always fertilizing, mowing,
vacuuming, and other manicuring
to be done. ‘

A native of Indiana with a degree
in engineering from Purdue Uni-
versity, Walls came to Pell City to
buy the sod farm after he and a
partner sold a fabricating business
in Birmingham. He had no experi-
ence in farming, but he has in-
creased acreage on the farm and
last year sold 500 acres of grass,
many of them transported by his
trucks that caarry 900 yards of sod
away from the farmata time weigh-
ing up to 65,000 pounds. With an
850 acre yard as his responsiblity,

has a lwere sale price. e = p;c'k Wal of ‘Surfsidf; %(Sd,Earm“is.,

c~A farm smnlovees work with 17

TICE AL
quite a busy man.
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This picture of the Cropwell
Basketball Team was made in 1920,
Unfortunately, the men pictured are
all unidentified. Do you know who
they are?



HISTORY OF CROPWELL

(ST. CLAIR COUNTY, ALA)

By Amanda Funderburg
Cropwell

In the year of 1815 a group of
relatives in South Carolina banded
together and started out for St.
Clair County, Alabama, to settle
and make new homes there- They
were the John Roberson, William-
son, Truss, Coleman, and Jeremi-
ah Collins families. All of them
except the Collins family had a
covered wagon in which to travel.
Mr. Collins could not afford a wa-
gon, so he made a crude “slide”
on which to transport a few be-
longings and his family rode in a
the wagons with the relatives.
The Collins family was from Vir-
ginia but had come on down to
South Carolina to join in the trek
to Alabama.

This group of kinspeople settled
in the vicinity of what is now
Cropwell and they were the first
white people to settle there. Soon
other white settlers came. Some
of these early families were as fol-
lows: Buchanan, Jones, Castleber-
ry, Bowden, Allen, Brewster, Alex-
ander, Turner, Laney, Roland,
Heaslett, Coley, Moncrief, Mur-
chison, and Fennel.

These first settlers bought some
of the finest farm and timber in
the valley for $1.00 per acre. Most
of them prospered. Even Mr. Col-
lins, who had slid in on a home-
madeée slide, found a way to get
possession of hundreds of acres of

AMANDA FUNDERBURG

1867

James R. Roberson—Jan. 23,
1873

W. L. Dollar—Jan. 20, 1898

William G. Sides—Feb. 14, 1899

Hardie Jones—Oct. 25, 1901

James P. Turner——March .20. .

1907
Albertw R._'Jones*Aug. 15, 1?14



SUnSIaana. *
from Diana to Cropwell on Octo-
ber 20, 1837. The Cropwell post-
office was discontinued on July
25, 1866, but was reestablished on
June 10, 1867. The names of the
postmasters and the dates of their
appointments are as follows:

NATIONAL ARCHIVES AND
RECORDS SERVICE WASHING-
TON 25, D.C.

According to the records of the
P.O. Dept. now in our -custody,
the P.O. at Cropwell, St. Clair Co.,
was established as Coosa on July
24, 1833 Its name was changed to
Diana on Nov. 25, 1834 and to
Cropwell on Oct. 20, 1837. It was
discontinued (sic) on July 25, 1866
and reestablished on June 10, 1867.

Names of PM’s and dates of
their appointments were:

James Roberson—Nov. 24, 1833

P. H. Castleberry—Feb. 19, 1835

John D. Fennel—Oct. 20, 1837

Russel 1. Allen—Nov. 6, 1840

John Collins—Sept- 29, 1843

John W. Jones—Jan. 7, 1854

Amasa L. Bowden—April 10,

1860
T. I. Fowler—June 10, 1867
Mattison Hendricks—Aug. 5,
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Reports of the P.M.'s of Crop-
well and Fountainrun to the P.
M. Dept- contain the following
site location data:

Cropwell—Dec. 5, 1913

5/8 of a mile So. of the B’ham

& Atlanta R.R. Tracks.

Dec. 7, 1915.

193 7/11 rods west of the B’ham

& Atlantic R.R. tracks.

February 10, 1917

1074 yards, So East of the B’ham

& Atlantic R.R. tracks.

June 2, 1943

208 miles So. West of the So.

R.R. tracks.

Fountainrun

April 18, 1500

2 miles West of Coosa River and

5 miles No. of Kelly Creek.

Another little postoffice on what
is now Cropwell Route, was estab-
lished in 1901 and discontinued in
1908. It was Fountainrun and was
located in the Harmon settlement
two miles west of the Coosa River-
Mr. J. O. M. Hardwick was the
only postmaster to serve that lif-
tle postoffice.

Most - of the early people of

THE BAMA
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Cropwell were Baptist. They at-
tended the Mt Pisgah Baptist
Church which was established in
1828. The Coosa valley Baptist
Church which was established in
1840, and the Sedden Baplist
Church which was organized be-
fore the Civil War. The few Meth-
odists, including the McRaes and
Laneys, belonged to the Eason-
ville Methodist Church. Before any
of the churches were organized,
camp meetings were held at Ea-
sonville and on Camp Creek. Lat-
er in 1888 the Cropwell Baptist
Church was organized. Long before
the Cropwell Baptist Church was
organized and built the commun-
ity had its own Sunday School
which was held in the Masonic
building.

The early setitlers of Cropwell
provided a school of some kind
for their children. At first the
schools were taught in dwellings-
The parents paid the teacher’s
salary and provided fire wood for
fuel. After Coosa Valley Church
was built it served as a school-
house, also. Mr. Owen Hardwick
was one of the early teachers to
teach in that church. He taught in
the late 1840’'s. A Mr. Brickhouse
was teaching in the Coosa Valley
Church during the Civil War when
the Wilson Raiders came gallop-
ing up the valley road. Ome of
the Yankees who rode ahead of
the main band of raiders pulled on
his reins and stopped long enough
to warn Mr. Brickhouse and to

~ have him _dismiss_school and _hur-.

vy the children off home.
After the Civil War the Crop-

. &

and it enabled children to attend
more regularly than if they'd had
to walk all the way to Coosa Val-
ley High School. The teachers who
taught in the Harmon school were
Mr. Jim Hardwick, Miss Mattie
Abbott and Mr. Thomas Harliss.
They were conscientious teachers
but they were not as gvod as Mr-
Hill and the people in that part
of the community were anxious for
Mr. Hill's school to be located
nearer instead of farther away
from them. So, In 1888 the new
school was built at Easonville. The
following year, 1889, Cropwell
built a new school. It was a two-
story building located about a
quarter of a mile from the present
school. It was to this school that
Mr. Roy Gibson came as principal
in 1915. In 1918 the present school
was built at Crppwell.

Mr. Gibson remained there un-
ti1 1926. He had a well disciplin-
ed and orderly high school and
was the most beloved principal
that Cropwell ever had. The school
remained a high school until 1929.
In the early years of the school’s
history the people of the commun-
ity supported their school well
Back when state could pay for
only a short term of school the
patrons of the school contributed
money for teachers’ salaries in
order to have longer terms of
school. Cropwell was also the first
community in the county to vote
for the 3 mill tax for the support
of schools:

- CrO pwe“l«has-al.ways--been on %8

ricultural community. Cotton has
always been the pr'mcipal crop.
e #
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1888. It was to this Coosa Valley
High School that Mr. I. W. Hill
came as principal. During the 1887-
1888 term a movement was made
to have the school moved to Crop-
well. Mr. Jim Roberson offered to
give the level plot of land below
what is now Mr. Fall Roberson's
home (toward Easonville) on which
to locate the new school. Mr. Hill
was highly in favor of the new lo-
cation and when he left for vaca-
tion he thought that plans were
definite to build there, but Eason-
ville decided to build her own
school in the center of the com-
munity for two reasons— first,
she didn’t want to lose the school
to Cropwell; and, second, a school
located in the center of the com-
munity would enable the children
living in the lower part of the
community to attend a better
school.

When the Coosa Valley School
had been built the parents of low-
er Easonville had moved the lit-
tle “first schoolhouse” down there
so that their children would have
aschool nearer to them. That little
school was called Harmon School

POSTMASTER

suel(] 03

WEBAN W operate a sweain Bl an
Cropwell in 1888.

In 1840 John W. Jones, who
came from Petersburg, Va., began
to operate a business at Cropwell.
That store still exists under the
name, James Roberson Sons. An-
other successful business of Crop-
well was a store operated before
the Civil War, by William T.
Smith. It fell into decline after he
left to fight in the Confederate
Army where he became a colonel.
In 1927 a drugstore was built at
Cropwell and was operated by
Dr- James P. Turner.

During the Civil War some of
the Cropwell men served with dis-
tinction in the Confederate Army.
In 1861 Company of 10th Ala-
bama Infantry Regiment was or-
ganized at Cropwell with Major
J. O. Truss as it’s captain. Wil-
liam T. Smith, a member of the
outfit won many promotions and
rose to the rank of Colonel of
the 10th Alabama Infantry Reg-
iment. This regiment was engaged
in about twenty-four battles dur-
ing the Civil War. They included
Second Manassa, Sharpsburg, Fred-

(See HISTORY on Page 7)

SEPTEMBER, 1965
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man, Eisenhower, Kennedy and
Johnson. He also has served un-
der seven postmaster generals:
James A. Farley, Frank C. Walker,
Robert E. Hannegan, Jesse M.
Donaldson, Arthur E. Summer-

HISTORY

(Continued From Page 6)

ricsburg, Wilderness, Chanselers-
ville, Gettysburg, Spotsylvania
courthouse, Salem Church, and

Crater. The regiment was distin-
guished for its action at Crater
and Salem Church.

The first United Daughters of
the Confedcracy chapter in St.
Clair County was organized at
Cropwell on July 20, 1914. It was
called the John W. Jones Chapter.

The first Masonic Lodge in St
Clair County was organized at
Cropwell before the Civil War.

In 1866 the B&A (Birmingham
and Atlantic) Railroad was built
by Rogers Brothers Lumbering
Company and it ran through Crop-
well. It was built primarily to
transport lumber but it had a
passenger car and it carried mail.
There was a depot at Cropwell.
Mr. Ben Haslett was the depot
agent.

In recent years, this has been
n prosperous farming community.
Quite a few developments have
come along. Latest is an airport,
which isn’t completed yet. We are
just above the Loean-Martin Dam.

SEPTEMBER, 1965
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however, that next year he might
decide to go into some kind of
business on a part-time basis, but
plans for this are not definite as
yet.

“1 am grateful to the patrons
of the Shawmut Post Office for
their fine cooperation during my
years as postmaster,” Strother
said.

Editor’s note: Leslie told vs
his retirement will not keep
him “from being with some
of the dearest friends | have,
the Postmasters of Alabama.”

He added he is “proud to
be a member of NAPUS and
appreciate all that it has done
for the postmasters.” He said
he wishes he had been able
to do more in our Chapter,
but due to bad health that
struck him and his wife in
1958 and 1960, he was “limit-
ed in what 1 could do, and
that was mostly my job as
Postmaster.”

We're happy that you will
continue to be with vs at
meetings, Leslie.

REMEMBER

‘D-DAY’

OCTOBER 15

THE BAMA |
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tbrﬁ down, others erected' and  metrical federal style, built by 231 south and hxghway .
the téwn maintained its own. - the Roberson family; the Jones- ' Tims Antique -Store no:
In 1927, Dr. James P. Turner - Morton home built- by Hardy ‘handles the' furniture and °
biilt & drugstore, a stone Jones; and the Ada Roberson fashions of the era. in which
‘ B‘uﬂdlng with rocks gathered home,” a green ramblmg' Cropwell was comiing into its
-froffi the Cropwell area. The old - dwenmg own, rather than. cheese; shogs
drugstore now houses the There are- 21 structures in- the and anything to coffins, which
, Cr . Cropwell area which is now an Roberson’s ,offered, - its
-res;dence of Miss Amanda historic “district. One of the customers. -
Fifiderburg,” who was post- structures is the vest-pocket -Cropwell now has an axrpor
mlstressmCropwelI from 1928-" park  containing Cropwell’s a country club, the Town ‘and
1974, > historic “marker ~— com- Country Store which handles a
“The éatlier houses in the area" mémorating St. Clair County’s great deal ‘of business - fo
are gotie — no longer does one . Company “F” of the Alabama persons coming to the area fo.
find the log and frame houses of "10th"" Alabama  Infantry enjoy lake recreation, but the -
_..the settlers. The residences:. Regiment, which was organized community continues with .
Femaining, . however, are’.inCropwell; and the Valley Hill some of the same families; and
_reflective of turn-of-t.he—cenmry Cemetery, two acres given by so many of the memones of the
Victoridn constriiction — as in> the. Roberson family fOI‘ a past. o
- the Mays—Sllas home with .a etery. - ‘NOTE: Hlstorlcal'v Jine
;.- fireplace in each of the nine - The”.cemetery contains 175 formation contained herein:
rooms, the two story white ods and. 35 holly trees, courtesy .of MISS Amanda”';ff? :
ﬁ'ame Vlctonan home svm—- anchs located between hlghway uF‘underburg '

and
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ST. CLAIR HISTORICAL TOUR

Cropwell Newspaper Printed I

¢

0P

VOL. 1.
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GROPWELL.

ces of this enterpirs-
g village.

SHORT BIOGRAPHY OF ITS

FOUNDER.

Good work and good
results of the old and
well established firm
of Robinson & Jones

Cropwell, Mabama is situated on
the B. & A. Railway in the Southern
part of St Clsir county, forty miles
east  of Birmingham, filteen miles
west of Talladega; in the heart of
Cooga valley midway between Coal
Sty and Kelleys Creek.  Iis loca-
tion gives it advanlages over any
uther village in this portion of the
county, of which its enterpriing cit-
izens are nou slow Lo wake advantage.

The vich, well-watered farming
ln_nfu.w_hi_t;q su;rouud it, the fine Lin;,

“hered fand fying “conuguous 0t
furnish its  aturdy yeomanry wid):
eonatant, profitable eroployrent.  ITts
freedom from the miasmatic poisona

fiialAnms 1A tanmr amanin laantiane ira

Jones moved from Harpersville, Shel-
by county to St. Clair county, and
purchaved the home and lands of
Calsin Cox, which enbraced the pres-
The adwelling
house purchased by Mr. Jones was a

ent site uf Cropwell.

double-log buuse with a 10 foot pass-
way, puncheon tloar and stick and
dirt chimuey, situated in the north-
ern part ol the present village.
There were few lumber mills in Ala.
bama in that day and sawed Jumber
war hard 1o get. Mr. Jones builta
lewed Jog store house vpposite his
dwelhng, in which he did  business
for aboutewo years., Tlis was the
Leginning of the present village of
Cropwell. He then sold  Ing  busi-
pess to W Hoand J. F. Carry.
1556 Mr. Joues built the store house
which enlarged 13 now  occupied by
obersun & Jones. He also built a

new dwelling house, selling bis cld

home and a poruen of bis land 1o
Hev. M. Hendnck. Mr. Jones did
business in the new store until the

winter of 1859-60 when he sold his
home 10 R. 8, Williamson. Of
course during the war bewween the
ntates the village was at a stapd-still.
After the war it began to grow un-
ul during the 70% ivbrad five or six
business houses.

In this day of railways it is hard
for us to realize the inconveniences
incident 1o business in Coosa Villey
during the 50’s and early 60’s. Prior

"Tasugeell toe merchandisy 10T - Gouss

Valley was ahipped to Greeusport
and carted thence to the points of
distribution. When the river above

Srannonart was tan lnw  far navian.

Macedonia, Pirgah, Clouch Camp
ground, Coosa Valley, Broken Ar-

row and Dollars near Eden.  The
last named was called by the bad
boya "log  level,” bLecause of the

preat number of dogs that atlended
all gutherings.  So numerous and ill-
hebaved were the dngs that attended
chureh in those sdavs that the good
brethron  were forced to create an
unseriplural otfice to which they an.
nualiv elected  a woriby  brother
known, nbeved and reapected an the
“Dog Pelter.”

developed sinee these days nntil now

The eountry has so

every man in Corsa Valley isin eany
reach of & churoh, where he can hear
the ward of Hind expounded, and  of
where s children
can obisin ai i-an the rudiments of

Cropwell and Coosa

a achonl iaga-

an edueation
Vailey extenmd a cordial invitation tn
all good citizens seeking homes.
Tue Firy or RosersoN & JoNks.
Juo. W, Jones, father of the jun-
ior member of the abnve named firn,
and father-in-law of the senior mem-
ber, came to Alabama from Peters-
burg Vaginia in 1840 and located at
Columbiana. Hs moved to Harpers-
ville in the fall of 1847, or the spring
of 1843, where hi engaged in busi-
ness until about 1853 when be moved
to what is now Cropwell, St. Clair
Here he built 3 swors hocee
in which be did business for about
two yyars.  He then sold oul and
wig oMt of DuBiness tor about & yar
clearing up out-standing business.
In 1856 he built the atore-house

county.

which enlarged is now occupied by
~ ™ - td
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The rich, well.watered farming
IMNLthu.h surround it, the fine mr‘
Beréd fand Iy “contigious o it
furnish its  sturdy yeomanry wrl/
constant, profitable eraployment. Its
freedom from the miasmatic poisons
incident to Jow awampy locations, its
exoellent church facilitier; it school
which runs eight uonths in the year
and is taught by one of the leading
nducatora in the county; its excellent
citizenchip, among whom Madame
tirundy with her gossiping tongue
Joes not reside, makes its bome life
all that could be desired by an intel-
lisgent community. In addition to
thene advantages, the village con-
of the oldest and most
successful  husiness houses in tbe
state, which carries everything in
stock that the home arnd farm de.
mand; it has a gin house huilt on the
most improved modern plans, and a
blacksmith and woodshop.  The in-
habitants  of the village -and sur,
rounding country are thus furnished
with the cunveniences of more pre-
lentinus towns without incurring the

incrensed expense of living.

Just west of the village is found
one of the largest and boldest springs
of pure clear water to be found in
the county, and in the long summer
layy it is a pleasant »ight to see the
valile wending their way to the
stream which flows froni this spring
o slake their thirst,

During the past few years marked
iinprovements bhave been inade in the
dweling houses of the village, so
thatnow, fur elegance and comfort
they will compare favorably with
thoae of any village in the state.

Of the early history of this village
and Cooua Valley we krow very Ilit.
te. The following facts however,
have been gleaned from men now

ns one

living:

-About the year 1853 Jno. W,

.

.

Ut wono rdn and@
incident to business in Coosa Valley

during the 50's and early 60%. Prior
1B0Gealt toe merchandise 10t - Gouss

Valley was «hipped 160 Greensport
and carted thence to the points of
distribution. When the river above
Greenspory was 100 low for naviga.
tion, the meichants were forced to
haul their goods on wagons from
Rome, Georgia. After 1866 until
1883 the merchandise of the lower
valley north of Kelley’s Creek was
consigned 1o Talladega. Prior to
the Civil War the goods for this sec-
tion were purchased in Charleston,
3.C,, and no e was sold by the
retdiler for lesa than 100 per cent.
profit. Bread stuffs, meat sugar and
coffee were not sold in a country
store. Not only were all food sup-
plies raised at home, butalso npearly
all the wearing apparrel was made
at the same place. Credit was cheap
and sccounts were small. Every
man paid hin accouut or was ostra-
cised from the society of the best
people.  Iren-clad notes and mort-
gages were unknown. The whole
of Coosa Valiey from Kelley's Creek
to Broken Arrow did not expend
more than 2,500 per annum for all
kinds of merchandise. Whiskey was
plentiful and very cbeap, and fisti-
cuffs were a popular pastime.

Politically the people were whigs
and demoocrats.  The democrats
shonted for “Hard Money” Free
Trade and Sailors Rights: while the
whigs shouted for Protection and
luterval Improvements. The demo-
crats were in the ascendency in St,
Clair county.

Prior to 1861 a large majority of
the people were illiterate.  Schools
were few in number and 10 most in-
stances badly managed and taught.

There were but six organized
churches in the whole va'lley from
Kelley’s Creek to Broken Arrow

R P
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in wblch be did business for about
two ygars,  He then sold out snd
wig olt of vuiiness ror about 4 jiar
clearing up out-standing business.
In 1856 he built the store-house
which enlarged is now occupied by
the present firm. Being 2 man of
unusual business sagacity, and secing
the country about to be precipitated
into civil war, early in 1860 he
closed out his mercantile bLusiness
and went to farming. Afier the war
closed 1n 1865 Mr. .Jones formed z
partnership with Col. W. T. Smith
He roon sold

now of Shelby Co.
bis interest to Col. Smith and opened
up a new store in Ashville. He

sold out this business in a short while
and returning o Cropwell opened up
another atore in which he continued
to do business nntil his death in 1873.
In the meantiine, however, he was
again in partoersbip with Col. Simith
in the Drug & Grocery business at
Cropwell, and in 1871-72 in a Gen-
eral Mercantile business at Wilson-
ville. In the winter of 1872, Col.
Smith retired from this business at
Wilsonville and Mr. Deosler suc-
ceeded to bis place and was a part.
ver when Mr. Jones died.

Mr. Jones made it a rule never to
conlinue in business long without a
change. He marshaled bis assets
ouce al leasi in every three years and
passed them in review. He would
not carry old goods in stock, He
opened up a store at Bianchville
with Jno Harden aga partoer in 18.
57 in order to find an outlet for un-
saléable goods. He had many aunc-
tions for. the same purpose. He
would not permit a dollar of his to
stand idle.  Full of im and energy
himself, he had a profound contempt
for an indolent man. Scrupulously
bouest, he despised a lack of it in
others. He bad fixed bhabits of bus-
iness that rendeied his entries in
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v-law of the senior mem-
Alahama from Peters-
vin 1840 and located at
He maved to Harpers-
il of 1847, or the spring
e hﬁ engaged in busi-
put 1853 when he moved
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25 ke built a srore house
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He then sold out snd
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out-standing businesa.
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Reine a2 man of

booke absolutely correct.  Such was
the man whose business Mr. J. R.
Roberson was called upon
unue in 1873, Mr. Roberson’s fa-
ther died when he was quite a small

1o cun-

boy.  Hegrew to manhood without
In 1869

he opened a grocery store in Crop-

receiving mach education.

well, in which he continued. pntil he
succeeded Moy, Mr. T M.
Jones was at thig time only fourteen

Jones,

yearg of age and possessed of a very
limited education.  Ile was employed
by Mr. Roberson as a clerk’and enn-
tinued in this relation nnil 18RI,
with the exception of four montbs
spent in taking a commercial course
1§81
the firm of Jones & Roberson opured
a business in ‘Talladega, while Mr.
Reberson continned at Cropwell. In
1583 the business of the two hnuses
were consulidated at Cropwell under

at Pooghkeepsie, N. Y. In

the firm name of Raherson & Jones.
Nothing in the world succeeds like
success, Roberson & Jones have had

'success from the establishment of the

firm. From year to year their busi-
ness has increased in volume until
they are regarded as one of the lead-
ing mercantile firms in this section of
the State. Every effect has its cause.
Let us examine some of the causes
that have prodnced this effect:
Ther ncito in buying, “We pay
cash” speaks volumen. It enables
them at all times to buy goods st the
4 ":L:’.'Fﬁ.:uu
quoted by commercial “tofirists as
the very lowest prices are not always

vury iowestusiin prives.

aocepted for the buyer for the firm
malea a anecial atudv of the markets

goods, They try to treat all their
alike.  They appremate
their patronage in the past, and wili
strive to merit it in the fowre. The
firm announces with pleasure to i~
cuatomers that the buxiness esial-
lished by Mr. Jones in 1853 awd con.
tinned by Roberson & Jonex since
1383 will be at the same ohl wtanl
ready to pay the highext priee for
cotton and o sell goods at the lowew
prices during the fall and winter of
1895-96.

cusLomers

Basonville.
The eold wave has reached us, and
frost has made its appearance.
The farmers are quite busy gath-
ering their cropa. Cotton is opening
We think by the first of
December it will be all picked.

Cropwell must be on a

very fast

big hoom.
We nee several halen of coton go-
ing by to be ginned and marketed
there. We hear that Mr. MecLelian
has ginned a3 many as twenty one
hales several days, and in all some-
thing over five bundred bales. Also
that Messrs Roberson & Jones are
watrictly in it” so far as the cotton
market is concerned. Hurrab hoys!
That’s right, boom -up your tewn and
accommodate the farmersall you can.
May be we will get upa boom in
onr town tos, some of these Jdays.
We know that your accommodations
and facilities for ginning, baodling
apd . ouing eotton cannnt he ev.
celled and so we cannot blame the
pepyle for going there.

LXr school is doing finely under
the supervision of Mr, Bynum, and

. e - ERPURNPEE VEEN | .
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FUvhL wivby B LUY M, Ty e pay
cash” speaks volumes. It enables
them at all timea to buy goods at the
vury iO’n‘:lﬂ.\'u.:'{!h' prives. Y Ty =y O
quoted by commercial “toarists as
the very lowest prices are not always
aocepted for the buyer for the firm
makes a special study of the markets
and usually gets manuafacturers
prices on every thing handled by the
firm. The firm is thus enabled to
give their customers the benefit of
the profits nsually made by the “mid-
dle.man.” There is another item of
cost which enters into the purchase
of goods that the firm guards well;
viz., cost of transportation. Rail.
ways sometime charge the unwary
exorbitant freight rates. So true
have Roberson & Jones been to their
customers in this respect that mer-
chanta living in Coosa Valley on a
Trunk line bave had their goods
sbipped to Cropwell in order to get
advantage of the rates. Having
guarded well every avenue entering
into the cost of goods, the firm has
been enabled at all times 1o meet le-
gilimate competition  whether at
home or abroad. The firm has stud-

ied the cotton business in all of itg

phases from the field o the factory,
and its connections are sach that en-
sblg it to pay the highest market
price for cotton. Cost of transpor-
tation also affects the price of cotton,
and to prove to their customers that
Roberson & Jones are always ou the
watch to protect their interests, they

-at one time secured a better rate on

cotton than that obtained by some of
the cities pear them.

In selling goods Roberson & Jones
have always made it a rule never to
sell ap article for less than it is worth
and make up ita loss by selling an-
other for more than it is worth: nor
to pay for cotton more than it is

worth and make up their loss on

P

viieoe
We know that your accommodations
and facilities for ginning, bandling

n)r;:“ . “'.-)__ui?g _roxtan
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rannnt ha  av.
celled and 60 we cannot blame the
pepble for going there.

LYr school in doing finely ander
the snpervision of Mr. Bynum, and
his efficient assistant Miss Laura
Davis.

Mr. W. C. Honston bas returned
from’ Georgia where he has been to
recuperate his health. He is look-
ing well and bas opened his school at
Cropwell. We understand he has 2
good schaol. - We wish you much
succeds Prof.

Miss Forney, our accomplished
music and art teacher came a few
days agu. She already bas several
pupils and has promise of several
more. We wish her much success
a8 we know her to be guite a talented
young lady and feel sure she will
give perfect satisfaction.

R. L. McLellan left for Birming.
bam the 30th ult. where he will
spend a few days and thengo on to
Mobile to take another course of lec-
tures in the A. M. C.

The Hpworth League meetings
bave a large attendance and we
think are accomphshing a great deal
of good.

The time for our annual Confer-
ence is drawing near, and we hope
all who can will attend.

At the request of the Pastor of
the First Methodist Church of
Talladega, our I’astor, Rev. Mcl).
Howell, preached for them on the
fifth Sunday. We hear be preached
a fine sermon and all who attended
were much edilied thereby.

There is much sickness in our vi-
ciuity and Dr. Steadham  bas heen
kept quite busy.

\Wao,

Subseribe for this paper.




By TISA MOORE
News-Aeglz Reporter

PELL CITY—Everyone around
Logan Martin Lake looks forward
to summertime—skiing, fishing,

~ and just good times. Have you ever
.thought what Pell City would be
~like;without the lake?

- Prior to 1964, there was no lake
in Pell City because there was no
dam. For some of us it is hard for us
10 imagine life without them. For
others, the dam is all in the name of
progress.

In 1957, the Federal Power
Commission gave Alabama Power
a pérmit to study development on
the Coosa River. Liule did they
know that the development would
be the biggest waterway de-
velopment undertaking carried out
by investor capital.

Begun in 1958, the 10-year pro-
ject was.lo complete seven new
ydroelectric plants and refurbish

“lwo old plants by 1968, with a
budget of around $250 million.

= Progress brings change and the
construction of the dams certainly

The powerhouse is 295 feet long.
Its six spiliway gates are each 40
feet wide. The capacity of each
spillway gate is about 12,567,000
gallons per minute. Across the dam
is the highway that connects St.
Clair and Talladega counties.

The Army Corps of Engineers
has the responsibility of overseeing
the development of the nation’s
navigable waterways.

The Corps supplements low
flows during dry months and con-
trols flood waters. The reservoir is
lowered during the dry fall-winter
periods. From October 1 to April 1
the elevation is the normal max-
imum of 460,

In the month of April the reser-
voir is filled. By May 7 it is the

normal summer maximum of 465, -

Fluctuations occur from day to day
due to the Logan Martin Power
plant, which generates the power
for electricity.

The dam is a great source of
revenue for St. Clair County. A
huge portion of Pell City’s sales tax
is generated from the lake through
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By 1833 they had a post offzce whtch was called Coosa

and was located about a mile from Truss’s Ferry. The L
name of this office was changed to Diana and later to
Cropwell. Miss Amanda Fu derb rg, recently retired

after 42 years as Cropwell postmistr
well with bits of lustory an folklo;
postma rs. ‘ -

:;'ould rite a book and how we
you that Cropwell’s first me

who caime from Virginia es’s daughter, Addw,;

_was marr ed to J. R. Robers tually the store
became\ , v ’ 7 This

; d stone;buz
settmg or‘Davul Txms nthue.sh

without a doubt you will hear about
that likker drmklng horse ra ‘
dechred that he :

- of the South for more
_into the convers
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" ear and listen closely and

hear about Jeremiah Col ns,
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2 day be the ri estman in the
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§ son, Jesse ( ollins, defied his
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Resting on its laurel

Sleepy little Cropwell

BY BOB HAWKINS
‘News staff writer
CROPWELL

This community in deep
-South St. Clair County was
settled in the early 1800s by
people who came down from
the Carolinas in covered wag-
ons, except old Jeremiah Col-
lins who was in the group, but
he had his team hitched to a
sled and slipped in.

Old Jeremiah and his
friends started something that
boomed for nearly 100 years
when cotton was king and
corn his queen.

A WEEKENDER headed
for the blue waters of Logan
Martin Lake on the nearby
Coosa is likely to miss the
little burg when he breezes
through. L

Are Wit

E e
Cropwell is a sleepy little
dot on the map, and its folks

would just as soon keep it that
way. There’s a postoffice,
general store and antique
shop and that’s about all.
When Jeremiah and his
party pulled up here in 1812
they established one of the

- first really active communi.

ties in Alabama, complete with
a schoeol, church and houses
which all looked alike. One
member of the settler party
was an architect and builder,
but te relished conformity,
and built the houses right out
of Queen Victoria’s handbook,

Pat Roberson, a retired
banker and Civil War buff
without peer, recalls that
Cropwell furnished some of

of past

the finest leaders in that great
conflict,

ONE OF the more dashing
Yankee chasers was Capt.
James Truss who served with
honor through the war. Capt.
Truss came out of the war
intact and sought his fortunes
elsewhere. He was such a
leader they named Trussville
for him.

Another was William Smith,
who rose to the rank of
colonel. Col. Smith was so
small his troops joked that
they could always tell where
the colonel was because his
saber dragged the ground.

Most  communities have
their' legends and spook
stories. Cropwell has a couple
of dandies, While watering his
horses one day, a Mr. Collins
saw the reflection of a coffin
in the water with him in it.
Supposedly, ‘Mr. Collins died
the same day.

A Mr, James Mays swore
he would never ride in a
hearse, and &e never did. His
18 slaves toted him to his final
vesting place, while the
mourners walked behind.

Cropwell boasts several il-
lustrious sons, including a
couple of college presidents, a
congressman and a state
superintendent of education.

SILENT MOVIE star Mary
Pickford once paid a pop call
on Cropwell.- Seems she and
hushand Jimmy Rogers were
flying to California when their
plane conked out. The beauti-
ful Mary slept in Cropwell,
but no one recalls in what
house,

Progress caught up with
Cropwell a few yearsago
when Alabama Power Co.
built Logan Martin Dam and
a road had to be built around
the town. It now sits there
whiling away the time,
a charming remnant of the
past that looks very much like
one of those towns seen in
western movies.



SUILDING IN CROPWELL REPRESENTATIVE OF ANOTHER ERA
. St. Clair community rich in legends, history of Alabama
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BY FRANK McGOWAN News sports wrxter

Work on the latest g0lf course, the 18-hole Champlons Pine
Harbor: Golf and: Country Club is movmg at-a good pace with
officers loohmg towards an Auvust ’69 opening:

Located at’ Clopwell Ala the Pme “Harbor “layout will
measure 6700 ‘yards ‘on completxon with 11 par “four holes,
three par five holes and four par three holes
for a par 71.

T. C. Casaday Jr., is president of the cluh
with .membership Iimlted 10°400." More - infor-
“‘mation may he obtained from Cassaday at Pine
Harbor Marina or by wrxtmg Post Office Box
;55 at Cropwell.

In-addition to the colf course a clubhouse
1 and swnnmmg pool will be :

: Offlcexs in addmon to Mr Casaday are =
. McGOWAN - Elbert Jemison Jr., vice president; Don
Waters, secletary-tleasurer, ‘and A, W. Jones,

‘general counsel :

§ RO~AM of the year under the Alabama PGA D1x1e !
‘Secuon is set for Monday at Selma Country Club Bud Burns

PG presxdent Gene lehams is expectmg the dogfwht to
be part of a two-day program at Selma. o :

The ‘annual dinner meeling of the pro -group: Is: set for
Tuesday ,night with an outstanding pro and amateur to he
honored for their golf - work, The Alabama Golf “Association
works wnth the PGA on the selectxons. f

" Other dogfight dates mclude Arrowhead Country Club, -
Montgomery, March 10, Dave Atmp pro; Musgrove Country
Club, Jasper, March 17, Travls Hudson pro Altadena Valley
Golf and Country Club March 24, Dick Chne pro.

The March 31 date will ‘be open thh most. of the PGA
members competing in the ‘Heart of Dixie pro-am at
Saugahatchee Country Club, Auburn, that weekend, March
29-30.

AUGUSTA MASTERS wmmxttee has announced an
additional list of Invited players iucludmg Birminghams

Hubert Green, ‘a fomth-place fxmsher in the 1968 -National
Amateur.

Other players on the addmonal st mclude Bruce Flexsher
Dave Stockton, Frank Boynton; Marty Fleckman, Lou. Graham, .

Robert Barbalossa John Bohmann Rick Massengale and Allen
Mxller III

There. are 59 mvxtees on the Masters hst w1th seven other
playels to be added. bringing the total 1o 66.
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BY JIMMY BRYAN
News_ sports writer

They named the new golf
course Harold (Bluc) Wil-
Hams, Booty Monroe, Elbert
Jemison, - “Billy Deyo and
friends dug out of the red clay
near Pell City correctly . . .
they’re calling the Pine Har-
bor layout Champions, and
that’s appropriate . .. it he a
championship golf course in a
year or two, believe me ; . .
only 13 months  under  con-
struction, Champions is play-
‘able already and it’s getting
some play from approximate-
Iy 100 members.

The course has it all . , .
hills, valleys, trees, water and
sand . . . i Bhas doglegs,
uphillers,  downhillers " and
straightaway “holes .. for
some - mysterious reason, the
back nine has out-siripped the
fmnt nine , .. the fairways
and greens back there are the
equal of many much older
courses around the state . . .
membership target is 400, and
there’s. much more io offer
than golf . . . lepuis courts
are in use, a swimming pool
glimmers - behind ' the - refurb-
ished cluhhﬂuse and equip-
ment is available in the up-to-
date pro shep ., . it’s less
than an hour from Birming-
%am and Anniston, and worth
a look . .. yoire welcomed.
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:; ; BY }f‘RANK SIKORA News staff writer ! (:C)gldnﬁt believe 1t,” he -'wud “There was a
1r PELLCITY war about ‘to happen, and ! didn't want io stay
. Fhere are two ways Tom Casaday gets closer to behind.”

R his God. ‘One is to sit 'on his back porch and just Jook borhe went {o the Army Air Corps and tried to
on at the “raterb of Loﬂ'dn l\]artln Lake in the equ\! l‘nh‘ﬂ, {hCV dldn t\VJHt tO take him., But after much
Jat 11'101‘51‘111,,, as it lapg neath'the 1.0100dmr{h1]1q_ s arguing he finally got by. He went into the cadet
rar The second is te climb into a plane and sail up  program, and emerged a pilot and an officer.

fos amoing th(jc]gl\;ds W:heneyer he takes};he notion. But shat -the draft ‘board couldn’t do, a plane
\Ve' - r‘he {Irst” way ©ig .a matter of l@]gurp (“}]en he crash dld JL happoncd ]U\L a ShOI{ time 1)6101‘& he
futs can find it). While the second is oﬂen a ‘matter o was {o leave with his group for North Africa.

1 necessny ; HE WAS MOVING his bomber down the runw ay,
the CAbADAY, HEAD of the Alabama Wing of the preparng for. a iraining mission in Texas, buddenlx
pat, Civil Air Patrol, has been in the f{lying business another craft pulled in front of him and there was a
tigh since he was five. Born in Birmingham, his parents wreck. onapar-with two tractor trallers slamming
Wa had rmoved to Montgomery, and the house was just a into each other.
con short hop from Maxwell Field. One of the kids in the Casaday woke up threc weeks idl‘vf and was out

“ block was - Reid Doster, now Comnmnder of the of any overseas duty.
wit. Alabama Air National Guard. \ In 1947 he Jqlmd the Civil Air Patrol, and has
ang Gen:. Claire Chennault, who later led the Flying held just about every office in it. He's been involved in
ra“} ~Tigers in China, “was stationed at Maxwell i those all - 'sorts - of ‘rescue and  recovery  operations,
look - dd\s, and Casaday would walk to the edge of the including Camille.
sup. field to watch the planes take off and land. . It was five years ago that he left an executive

E ““The first time he saw them his mind was quickly position  with a sules store chain, and began
indé - made up: be was going to pilot a plane himself some developing a resort area at Logan Martin,

8244 - day. .. ST Wi AS ON one of those ¢hill mornings while
gam S 1938 when he was ”0 he began taking ﬂ}m sipping coffee on his back porch that it occwrred tn

St instructions, mixed in with' some college and plenty  him that what was needed was a seaway . . . &
inde ~of work. ‘However, with Hitler's troops stomping landing place for xseaplqnem
gainj over Europe, it-became evident that Uncle Sam was There’s ‘not>one -in Alabama. So Casada ¥'s
previ. . " sooner or later apt to pay the tab for his  working on that right now, and by the end of

Th “instructions. ‘ : ‘November it’ll be-in operation.
chang THE FIRST REAL indication of this came with “You’d be surprised at how many sutdoorsmen -
mon.i " the ‘draft. His name was the second called in the  have seaplanes,” he said. ‘““Ihey can take them
out th {irst major draft of the World War Two era. But_he anywhere, and fish from the ponteons.”’
compe was quickly dumped, and classified 4-F because of To prove that the idea will be a success, z
previg an injury sustained while trying out for the Auburn seaplane from Vancouvegy dropped down the other
": é‘ football team. day Just to look the lake ovgp _
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CLASS REUNION —
CONTINUED FROM FRONT PAGE

-all the members are related hy
pairs. Elizabeth Knight, who lat-
er became a sister-in-law of
the Scott girls, is a first cousin
of Mary Mays; Addie and An-
nie Scott are sisters; Sallie and
Ethel ‘Boley are aunt and niece,

All wara nrocont far Hha  wa

The Cropwell High School
gracuating Class ‘of 1920 = all

‘six of them — ‘got together re- -

cently for a brlef ‘bt enJoyable
reunion with- one of its Them-
bers, Mrs. Addie S. Gray, at

the home of her son and daugh- -

ter-in-law, Mr. and Mrs; Cecil
Gray, Jr.

The six ladies, shown above
in their graduation picture, met
on the birthday of one of the
members, Mrs. 0. B. Morris of
Riverside, and spent an enjoy-
able two lhours reminiscing and
looking at school pictures which
their former teacher, Mr. Roy
Gibson, brought alone for #ha

Algebra, Plane and Solid. Ges

" ometry, Rhetm i¢; Ancient,

Medieval and Modern History
and History of England; the
works of Shakespeare and Dick-
ens and other English writers
and Literature.

All members of the class at-

‘tended college. Two, Miss Mary
Mays and Mrs. Elizabeth Knight -

Scott, went to Judson College.
Miss Mays, after graduating
from Judson attended Ran-
dolph Macon College in Virginia
later became a buyer for a
large BaIUmme firm.

Three attended Florencc State

Alnsram T ot



HER-E:’S JHOW{THE." VE

DRESSED GRADUATE LOOKED.

ie . Scott ‘Stepheis,
Gray, and- Ethel

CLASS REUNION -~
CONTINUED FROM FRONT PAGE

-all the members are related hy
pairs. Elizabeth Knight, who lat-
er became a sister-in-law of
the Scott girls, is a first cousin
of Mary Mays: Addie and An-
nie Scott are sisters; Sallie and
Ethel Boley are aunt and niece.

All were present for the re-
union, along with Mr. and Mrs.
Roy Gibson. Other invited
guests, who were also Cropwell
graduates, were Mrs. Millard
Lawley, Mrs. Leonard Scott and
Mrs, Cecil Gray, Jexy

The Ci pwé‘fl‘ High School
graduating” Class 'of 1920 - -alt

'six of them - got tocfether re- -

cently for a: brlef ‘biat: enJoyable
reunion with- one of its ‘mem-
bers, Mrs. Addie- §. Gray, at

the home of her son and daugh- -

ter-in-law, Mr. and Mrs. Cecil
Gray, Jr.

The six ladies, shown above
in their graduation picture, met
on the birthday of one of the
members, Mrs. 0. B. Morris of
Riverside, and spent an enjoy-
able two hours reminiseing and
looking at scheol pictures which
their former teacher, Mr. Roy
Gibson, brought along for the
occasion.

There arc several remarkible
aspects about the class wlnch»

g:aduated 48 ‘years ago per-

haps the most notable being
that all six and their. ‘teacher
are- stllI hvmg and active in
pubhc affaxrs

For mstance four of the six
taught school, and one is still
teaching, All acquired  third
grade teachers’. certificates aft-
er they had finished the eighth
grade at Cropwell.

- THEY WERE taught a varie-
ty of subjects by one teacher
— Mr. Gibson — including ‘Eng-
lish, “Gramimar, Authmchc
Agriculture, .. Health, Spelling,
Reading, “Geogr aphy, - Alabama
and United' Siates Hlstmy, first
year Latin,* Cicero, Caesar,

Algebra, Plane and Solid Ge:

" ometry, Rhet01 i¢;  Ancient,

Medleval and Modern History
and History of England; the
works of Shakespeare and Dick-
ens and other English writers
and Literature,

_ All members of the class at-
tended college. Two, Miss Mary

Mays and Mrs. Elizabeth Knight
Scott, went to Judson College,
Miss Mays, after graduating
from Judson attended Ran-
dolph Macen College in Virginia
later became a buyer for a
large Baltimore firm.

Three aitended Florence State
Neormal School. They were Mrs.
Ethe] Boley Morris, Mrs, Annie

‘Scott Stephens and Mrs. Addic

Scott Gray. Mrs. Stephens, then
Miss Anme Scott, graduated
from there, later taught in vari-
ous counties throughout the
state.. She is now employed as
bookkeeper at Pell Clty Rexall

- Drug. Co..

Mrs. Addic Gray reared a
family of three and, after 40
years, graduated from Alabama
Colleve with a major in Social
Science and a minor in English,
Shé is now teaching third grade
at Iola Roberts School.

THE OTHER members of the

" «class are -homemakers.

Another unique aspect is that
Cont’d To Back Page
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HISTORY OF CROPWELL

(ST. CLAIR COUNTY, ALA)

By Amanda Funderburg
Cropwell

In the year of 1815 a group of
relatives in South Carolina banded
together and started out for St.
Clair County, Alabama, to settle
and make new homes there. They
were the John Roberson, William-
son, Truss, Coleman, and Jeremi-
ah Collins families. All of them
except the Collins family had a
covered wagon in which to travel.
Mr. Collins could not afford a wa-
gon, so he made a crude ‘“slide”
on which to transport a few be-
longings and his family rode in a
the wagons with the relatives.
The Collins family was from Vir-
ginia but had come on down to
South Carolina to join in the trek
to Alabama.

This group of kinspeople settled
in the vicinity of what is now
Cropwell and they were the first
white people to settle there. Soon
other white settlers came. Some
of these early families were as fol-
lows: Buchanan, Jones, Castleber-
ry, Bowden, Allen, Brewster, Alex-
ander, Turner, Laney, Roland,
Heaslett, Coley, Moncrief, Mur-
chison, and Fennel.

These first settlers bought some
of the finest farm and timber in
the valley for $1.00 per acre. Most
of them prospered. Even Mr. Col-
lins, who had slid in on a home-

~*fiste siide, found a way to get
possession of hundreds of acres of
fine land and more slaves than
he could call by name.

On July 24, 1833, a postoffice
was established as Coosa at Crop-
well. It was located about a mile
from Truss' Ferry. On November
15, 1834, the name was changed
to Diana. The name was changed
from Diana to Cropwell on Octo-
ber 20, 1837. The Cropwell post-
office was discontinued on July
25, 1866, but was reestablished on
June 10, 1867. The names of the
postmasters and the dates of their
appointments are as follows:

NATIONAL ARCHIVES AND
RECORDS SERVICE WASHING-
TON 25, D.C.

According to the records of the
P.0. Dept. now in our custody,
the P.O. at Cropwell, St. Clair Co,,
was established as Coosa on July
24, 1833 Its name was changed to
Diana on Nov. 25, 1834 and to
Cropwell on Oct. 20, 1837. It was
discontinued (sic) on July 25, 1866
and reestablished on June 10, 1867.

Names of PM's and dates of

AMANDA FUNDERBURG

1867
James R. Roberson—Jan. 23,
1873

W. L. Dollar——Jan. 20, 1898

William G. Sides—Feb. 14, 1839

Hardie Jones—Oct. 25, 1901

James P. Turner—March 20.

1907

Albert R. Jones—Aug. 15, 1814

John B. Shurbet—Oect. 20, 1815

Amanda C- Funderburg — Dec.
13, 1928

A post-office was established at
Fountainrun, St. Clair Co., on Sept.
26, 1900, with James O. M. Hard-
wick appointed as the only PM.
It was discontinued on May 31,
1908.

Reports of the PM.'s of Crop-
well and Fountainrun to the P.
M. Dept- contain the following
site location data:

Cropwell—Dec. 5, 1913

5/8 of a mile So. of the B’ham

& Atlanta R.R. Tracks.

Dec. 7, 1915.

193 7/11 rods west of the B’ham

& Atlantic RR. tracks.

February 10, 1917

1074 yards, So- East of the B’ham

& Atlantic R.R. tracks.

June 2, 1943

208 miles So. West of the So.

R.R. tracks.

Fountainrun

April 19, 1900

2 miles West of Coosa River and
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Cropwell

In the year of 1815 a group of
relatives in South Carolina banded
together and started out for St.
Clair County, Alabama, to settle
and make new homes there. They
were the John Roberson, William-
son, Truss, Coleman, and Jeremi-
ah Collins families. All of them
except the Collins family had a
covered wagon in which to travel.
Mr. Collins could not afford a wa-
gon, so he made 2 crude “slide”
on which to transport a few be-
longings and his family rode in a
the wagons with the relatives.
The Collins family was from Vir-
ginia but had come on down to
South Carolina to join in the frek
to Alabama.

This group of kinspeople settled
in the vicinity of what is now
Cropwell and they were the first
white people to settle there. Soon
other white settlers came. Some
of these early families were as fol-
lows: Buchanan, Jones, Castleber-
ry, Bowden, Allen, Brewster, Alex-
ander, Turner, Laney, Roland,
Heaslett, Coley, Moncrief, Mur-
chison, and Fennel.

These first settlers bought some
of the finest farm and timber in
the valley for $1.00 per acre. Most
of them prospered. Even Mr. Col-
lins, who had slid in on a home-
madesiide, found a way to get
possession of hundreds of acres of
fine land and more slaves than
he could call by name.

On July 24, 1833, a postoffice
was established as Coosa at Crop-
well. 1t was located about a mile
from Truss’ Ferry. On November
15, 1834, the name was changed
to Diana. The name was changed
from Diana to Cropwell on Octo-
ber 20, 1837. The Cropwell post-
office was discontinued on July
25, 1866, but was reestablished on
June 10, 1867. The naraes of the
postmasters and the dates of their
appointments are as follows:

NATIONAL ARCHIVES AND
RECORDS SERVICE WASHING-
TON 25, D.C.

According to the records of the
P.O. Dept. now in our custody,
the P.O. at Cropwell, St. Clair Co.,
was established as Coosa on July
24, 1833 Its name was changed to
Diana on Nov. 25 1834 and to
Cropwell on Oct. 20, 1837. It was
discontinued (sic) on July 25, 1866
and reestablished on June 10, 1867.

Names of PM’s and dates of
their appointments were:

James Roberson—Nov. 24, 1833

P. H. Castleberry—Feb. 19, 1835

John D. Fennel—Oct. 20, 1837

Russel I. Allen—Nov. 6, 1840

John Collins—Sept- 29, 1843

John W. Jones—Jan. 7, 1854

Amasa L. Bowden—April 10,

1860
T I Fowler—June 10, 1867
Mattison Hendricks—Aug. 5,
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James R. Roberson—Jan. 23,
1873

W. L. Dollar—Jan. 20, 1898.

William G. Sides—Feb. 14, 1899

Hardie Jones—Oct. 25, 1901

James P. Turner—March 20.
1907

Albert R. Jones—Aug. 15, 1914

John B. Shurbet—Oct. 20, 1915

Amanda C- Funderburg — Dec.
13, 1928

A post-office was established at
Fountainrun, St. Clair Co., on Sept.
26, 1900, with James 0. M. Hard-
wick appointed as the only PM.
It was discontinued on May 31,
1908.

Reports of the P.M.s of Crop-
well and Fountainrun to the P.
M. Dept- contain the following
site location data:

Cropwell—Dec. 5, 1913

5/8 of a mile So. of the Bham

& Atlanta R.R. Tracks.

Dec. 7, 1915.

193 7/11 rods west of the B’ham

& Atlantic RR. tracks.

February 10, 1917

1074 yards, So- East of the B’ham

& Atlantic R.R. tracks.

June 2, 1943

208 miles So. West of the So.

RR. tracks.

Fountainrun

April 19, 1900

9 miles West of Coosa River and

5 miles No. of Kelly Creek.

Another little postoffice on what
is now Cropwell Route, was estab-
lished in 1901 and discontinued in
1908. It was Fountainrun and was
located in the Harmon settlement
two miles west of the Coosa River-
Mr. J. 0. M. Hardwick was the
only postmaster to serve that lit-
tle postoffice.

Most of the early people of
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Cropwell were Baptist. They at-
tended the Mt. Pisgah Baptist
Church which was established in
1828. The Coosa Valley Baptist
Church which was established in
1840, and the Sedden Baptist
Church which was organized be-
fore the Civil War. The few Meth-
odists, including the McRaes and
Laneys, belonged to the Eason-
ville Methodist Church. Before any
of the churches were organized,
camp meetings were held at Ea-
sonville and on Camp Creek. Lat-
er in 1888 the Cropwell Baptist
Church was organized. Long before
the Cropwell Baptist Church was
organized and built the commun-
ity had its own Sunday School
which was held in the Masonic
building.

The early settlers of Cropwell
provided a school of some kind
for their children. At first the
schools were taught in dwellings.
The parents paid the teacher's
salary and provided fire wood for
fuel. After Coosa Valley Church
was built it served as a school-
house, also. Mr. Owen Hardwick
was one of the early teachers to
teach in that church. He taught in
the late 1840’s. A Mr. Brickhouse
was teaching in the Coosa Valley
Church during the Civil War when
the Wilson Raiders came gallop-
ing up the valley road. One of
the Yankees who rode ahead of
the main band of raiders pulled on
his reins and stopped long enough
to warn Mr. Brickhouse and to
have him dismiss school. and hur-
ry the children off home.

After the Civil War the Crop-
well children walked to Easonville
and attended a school which had
been built there. Around 1880 a
new school, called Coosa Valley
High School, was built where Pres-
ton Wadsworth’s home now stands.
It served both the Easonville and
the Cropwell communities until
1888. It was to this Coosa Valley
High School that Mr. I. W. Hill
came as principal. During the 1887-
1888 term a movement was made
to have the school moved to Crop-
well. Mr. Jim Roberson offered to
give the level plot of land below
what is now Mr. Fall Roberson’s
home (toward Easonville) on which
to locate the new school. Mr. Hill
was highly in favor of the new lo-
cation and when he left for vaca-
tion he thought that plans were
definite to build there, but Eason-
ville decided to build her own
school in the center of the com-
munity for two reasons— first,
she didn’t want to lose the school
to Cropwell; and, second, a school
located in the center of the com-
munity would enable the children
living in the lower part of the
community to atfend a better
school.

When the Coosa Valley School
had been built the parents of low-
er Easonville had moved the lit-

and it enabled children to attend
more regularly than if they’d had
to walk all the way to Coosa Val-
ley High School. The teachers who
taught in the Harmon school were
Mr. Jim Hardwick, Miss Mattie
Abbott and Mr. Thomas Harliss.
They were conscientious teachers
but they were not as good as Mr-
Hill and the people in that part
of the community were anxious for
Mr. Hill’s school to be located
nearer instead of farther away
from them. So, in 1888 the new
school was built at Easonville. The
following year, 1889, Cropwell
built a new school. It was a two-
story building located about a
quarter of a mile from the present
school. It was to this school that
Mr. Roy Gibson came as principal
in 1915. In 1918 the present school
was built at Cropwell.

Mr. Gibson remained there un-
til 1926. He had a well disciplin-
ed and orderly high school and
was the most beloved principal
that Cropwell ever had. The school
remained a high school until 1929.
In the early years of the school’s
history the people of the commun-
ity supported their school well.
Back when state could pay for
only a short term of school the
patrons of the school contributed
money for teachers’ salaries in
order to have longer terms of
school. Cropwell was also the first
community in the county to vote
for the 3 mill tax for the support
of schools-

Cropwell has :\I\t'ays: boon oy
ricultural community. Cotton ha
always been the principal crop.
The Colemans, as early as the Civ-
il war years, owned a steam gin.
Part of Cropwell’s cotton was gin-
ned there. Part of it was ginned
at Drake’s Mill at Easonville and
part of it was ginned at the old
Laney horse-drawn gin. Robersons
began to operate a steam gin at
Cropwell in 1888.

In 1840 John W. Jones, who
came from Petersburg, Va., began
to operate a business at Cropwell.
That store still exists under the
name, James Roberson Sons. An-
other successful business of Crop-
well was a store operated before
the Civil War, by William T.
Smith. It fell into decline after he
left to fight in the Confederate
Army where he became a colonel.
In 1927 a drugstore was built at
Cropwell and was operated by
Dr.- James P. Turner.

During the Civil War some of
the Cropwell men served with dis-
tinction in the Confederate Army.
In 1861 Company of 10th Ala-
bama Infantry Regiment was or-
ganized at Cropwell with Major
J. 0. Truss as it’s captain. Wil-
liam T. Smith, a member of the
outfit won many promotions and
rose to the rank of Colonel of
the 10th Alabama Infantry Reg-
iment. This regiment was enracged



camp meetings were held at Ea-
sonville and on Camp Creek. Lat-
er in 1888 the Cropwell Baptist
Church was organized. Long before
the Cropwell Baptist Church was
organized and built the commun-
ity had its own Sunday School
which was held in the Masonic
building.

The early settlers of Cropwell
provided a school of some kind
for their children. At first the
schools were taught in dwellings-
The parents paid the teacher’s
salary and provided fire wood for
fuel. After Coosa Valley Church
was built it served as a school-
house, also. Mr. Owen Hardwick
was one of the early teachers fo
teach in that church. He taught in
the late 1840’s. A Mr. Brickhouse
was teaching in the Coosa Valley
Church during the Civil War when
the Wilson Raiders came gallop-
ing up the valley road. One of
the Yankees who rode ahead of
the main band of raiders pulled on
his reins and stopped long enough
to warn Mr. Brickhouse and to
have him dismiss school and hur-
ry the children off home.

After the Civil War the Crop-
well children walked to Easonville
and attended a school which had
been built there. Around 1880 a
new school, called Coosa Valley
High School, was built where Pres-
ton Wadsworth’s home now stands.
It served both the Easonville and
the Cropwell communities until
1888. It was to this Coosa Valley
High School that Mr. I. W- Hill
came as principal. During the 1887-
1888 term a movement was made
to have the school moved to Crop-
well. Mr. Jim Roberson offered to
give the level plot of land below
what is now Mr. Fall Roberson’s
home (toward Easonville) on which
to locate the new school. Mr. Hill
was highly in favor of the new lo-
cation and when he left for vaca-
tion he thought that plans were
definite to build there, but Eason-
ville decided to build her own
school in the center of the com-
munity for two reasons— first,
she didn't want to lose the school
to Cropwell; and, second, a school
located in the center of the com-
munity would enable the children
living in the lower part of the
community {o attend a better
school.

When the Coosa Valley School
had been built the parents of low-
er Easonville had moved the lit-
tle “first schoolhouse” down there
so that their children would have
a school nearer to them. That little
school was called Harmon School

\ POSTMASTER

nearer instead of farther away
from them. So, in 1888 the new
school was built at Easonville. The
following year, 1889, Cropwell
built a new school. It was a two-
story building located about a
qguarter of a mile from the present
school. It was to this school that
Mr. Roy Gibson came as principal
in 1915, In 1918 the present school
was built at Cropwell.

Mr. Gibson remained there un-
til 1926. He had a well disciplin-
ed and orderly high school and
was the most beloved principal
that Cropwell ever had. The school
remained a high school until 1929.
In the early years of the school’s
history the people of the commun-
ity supported their school well.
Back when state could pay for
only a short term of school the
patrons of the school contributed
money for teachers’ salaries in
order to have longer terms of
school. Cropwell was also the first
community in the county to vote
for the 3 mill tax for the support
of schools-

Crop‘.’.’en hae alwayse hoon === 5
ricultural community. Cotton has
always been the principal crop.
The Colemans, as early as the Civ-
il war years, owned a steam gin.
Part of Cropwell’s cotton was gin-
ned there. Part of it was ginned
at Drake’s Mill at Easonville and
part of it was ginned -at the old
Laney horse-drawn gin. Robersons
began to operate a steam gin at -
Cropwell in 1888.

In 1840 John W. Jones, who
came from Petersburg, Va., hegan
to operate a business at Cropwell.
That store still exists under the
name, James Roberson Sons. An-
other successful business of Crop-
well was a store operated before
the Civil War, by William T.
Smith. It fell into decline after he
left to fight in the Confederate
Army where he became a colonel.
In 1927 a drugstore was built at
Cropwell and was operated by
Dr- James P. Turner.

During the Civil War some of
the Cropwell men served with dis-
tinction in the Confederate Army.
In 1861 Company of 10th Ala-
bama Infantry Regiment was or-
ganized at Cropwell with Major
J. 0. Truss as it's captain. Wil-
liam T. Smith, a member of the
outfit won many promotions and
rose to the rank of Colonel of
the 10th Alabama Infantry Reg-
iment. This regiment was engaged
in about twenty-four battles dur-
ing the Civil War. They included
Second Manassa, Sharpsburg, Fred-

(See HISTORY on Page 7)
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(From ‘the Valley Times-News,
West Point, Ga., Lanett, Ala.)

Leslie D. Strother is retiring
today, (July 30, 1965) after serv-
ing as postmaster in Shawmut
for 31 years and three days, a
record of which he is justly proud.
He became Shawmut’s postmaster
on July 27, 1934, when the post
office was located in the north-
east corner of the store building
on the Circle in Shawmut.

The present brick building on
the Circle was occupied by the
post office in 1937, and an addi-
tion was made to the building in
1948.

kS # #

RECEIPTS OF THE post of-
fice in 1934 were $2,069.16, and
in 1964 receipts reached a total
of $15,997.01.

In addition to Strother, the
post office employs three clerks,
Mrs. Ruth Heggood, James L.
Shurett and Mrs. Willie Mae Akin.
The four postal employees toge-
ther have a total of 95 years of
service—Strother, 31 years; Mrs.
Heggood, 28 years; Shurett, 20
years; and Mrs. Akin, 16 years.

Strother has served under
live presidents: Roosevelt, Tru-
man, Eisenhower, Kennedy and
Johnson. He also has served un-
der seven postmaster generals:
James A. Farley, Frank C. Walker,
Robert E. Hannegan, Jesse M.
Donaldson, Arthur E. Summer-

HISTORY

(Continued From Page 6)

ricsburg, Wilderness, Chanselers-
ville, Gettysburg, Spotsylvania
courthouse, Salem Church, and

Crater. The regiment was distin-
guished for its action at Crater
and Salem Church.

The first United Daughters of
the Confederacy chapter in St
Clair County was organized at
Cropwell on July 20, 1914. It was
called the John W. Jones Chapter.

The first Masonic Lodge in St.
Clair County was organized at
Cropwell before the Civil War.

In 1866 the B&A (Birmingham
and Atlantic) Railroad was built
by Rogers Brothers Lumbering
Company and it ran through Crop-
well. It was buill primarily to
transport lumber but it had a
passenger car and it carried mail.
There was a depot at Cropwell.
Mr. Ben Haslett was the depot
agent.

In recent years, this has been
a prosperous farming community.
Quite a few developments have
come along. Latest is an airport,
which isn’t completed yet. We are
just above the Lozan-Martin Dam.
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field, J. Edward Day and John A.

Gronouski.

UNITED STATES Congressmen
under whom he has served are
Miles C. Allgood, Joe Starnes, Al-
bert Rains and George Andrews.

Strother was born in Columbus.
Ga., and moved to Shawmut in
1908. He is the son of the late
Mr. and Mrs. I. D. Strother.

Prior to becoming postmaster,
he was employed as assistant
overseer in the Shawmut Mill. He
is a member of the First Baptist
Church of Shawmut, and is the
teacher of the Men’s Bible Class
of the Sunday School.
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STROTHER IS married to the
former Miss Mary Katherine Wil-
liams of Flehop, Ala, in Elmore
County, and the couple has one
daughter, Mrs. Gaines Meadows,
of Shawmut, and three grandchil-
dren.

When asked what he plans to
do after retirement, the genial
postmaster said, “I plan to just
take it easy for the rest of this
year—maybe travel about some,
and also {ish some.”” e added,
however, that next year he might
decide to go into some kind of
business on a part-time basis, but
plans for this are not definite as
yet.

“I am grateful to the patrons
of the Shawmut Post Office for
their fine cooperation during my
years as postmaster,” Strother
said.

Editor’s note: Leslie told us
his retirement will nof keep
him “from being with some
of the dearest friends | have,
the Postmasters of Alabama.”

He added he is “proud to
be a member of NAPUS and
appreciate all that it has done
for the postmasters.” He said
he wishes he had been able
to do more in our Chapter,
but due to bad health that
struck him and his wife in
1958 and 1960, he was “limit-
ed in what | could do, and
that was mostly my job as
Postmaster.”

We're happy that you will
continue to be with us at
meetings, Leslie.

REMEMBER

‘D-DAY’

OCTOBER 15

&

(From the Northern S

HEAD PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS — Rayn
and Julia Robbins, who are brother and sister, bot
- president of the professional organization of their r
sions. Raymond is currently serving as president of
ture Travelers, Inc., the Alabama organization of V
ture Salesmen. Julia, postmaster at Fultondale, is
Alabama Chapter, National Association of Postma:
vice president and a member of the Board of Dire
bama Retail Furniture Assn., and recently was elect
Traveler of the Year.” She has been appointed to :
tionai Resolutions Committee while attending the i
tion in Omaha, Nebraska in October. She served as -
the Alabama Chapter, National Assn. of Postmaste;
She has received certificates of recognition from b
Controller and Regional Director for outstanding
duty as a postmasters and has received a citation
States Treasury Dept, for patriotic service in furthe

Bond program.

JACKSON

(Continued From Page 1)
Roden and daughter and son,
Loretta and Bruce, Pisgah; Mr.
Elvin Kennamer, Mrs. Kennamer,
and sons, Dewade and Rodney,
and daughter, Paula, Section.

Mrs. Kathryn Lea, Mr. Lea, and
daughters Shearland and Larue,
Flat Rock; Don Gilbert, Flat Rock;
Mr. J. T. Carroll, Mrs. Carroll and
daughter, Pat, Stevenson; Mrs.
Iris Smith and grandson, Holly-

tree; Odas Say
ville; Miss Mar;
Mrs. Gennie Lis
tin, Rainsville
Campbell, Treni

We hope to h
ing just after t}

tion. We have :
Jackson County,
attendance at
always have soi
visitors whom
have.

and 8.

District Meetings For

Association Year
November 12, 1965, Thunderbird Motel, Mobile (c:

February 18, 1966, Stafford Hotel, Tuscaloosa, Dis.
April 14, 15, 1966, Val Monte Resort, Guntersville
May 19, 1966, Pine Harbor, Pell City, Dis. 4.
Sept. (date not set yet) 1966, Kowaliga, Dis. 6.
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